
Damian Allen
Chief Executive
_________________________________________________________________
Issued on: Monday, 5 October 2020

Governance Services Officer for this meeting: Andrea Hedges
01302 736716

Doncaster Metropolitan Borough Council

www.doncaster.gov.uk

Agenda
____________________________________________________________________

To all Members of the

CABINET
Notice is given that a Meeting of the Cabinet is to be held as follows:

 
Venue:    Virtual Meeting via Microsoft Teams

Date:       Tuesday, 13th October, 2020

Time:      10.00 am
____________________________________________________________________

The meeting will be held remotely via Microsoft Teams. Members and Officers 
will be advised on the process to follow to attend the Cabinet meeting. Any 
members of the public or Press wishing to attend the meeting by teleconference 
should contact Governance Services on 01302 736716/ 737462/ 736712/ 736723 
for further details.

BROADCASTING NOTICE

This meeting is being recorded for subsequent broadcast via the Council’s web 
site. The Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection Act and images 
collected during this recording will be retained in accordance with the Council’s 
published policy. Please be aware that by entering the meeting, you accept that 
you may be recorded and the recording used for the purpose set out above.

Public Document Pack



Items                                                                                                               Page No.

1. Apologies for Absence.

2. To consider the extent, if any, to which the public and press are to be 
excluded from the meeting. 

3. Public Questions and Statements. 

(A period not exceeding 20 minutes for questions and 
statements from members of the public and Elected Members to 
the Mayor of Doncaster, Ros Jones. Questions/Statements 
should relate specifically to an item of business on the agenda 
and be limited to a maximum of 100 words. As stated within 
Executive Procedure Rule 3.3 each person will be allowed to 
submit one question/statement per meeting. A question may 
only be asked if notice has been given by delivering it by e-mail 
to the Governance Team no later than 5.00 p.m. on Thursday, 8th 
October, 2020. Each question or statement must give the name 
and address of the person submitting it. Questions/Statements 
should be sent to the Governance Team, Floor 2, Civic Office, 
Waterdale, Doncaster, DN1 3BU, or by email to 
Democratic.Services@doncaster.gov.uk).

4. Declarations of Interest, if any. 

5. Decision Record Forms from the meeting held on 29th September, 
2020 for noting (previously circulated). 

A.     Reports where the public and press may not be excluded

Key Decisions

6. Doncaster Offer - Children and Young People Activities. 1 - 20



Cabinet Members

Cabinet Responsibility For:

Chair – Ros Jones, Mayor of 
Doncaster

Budget and Policy Framework

Vice-Chair – Deputy Mayor 
Councillor Glyn Jones

Housing and Equalities 

Councillor Nigel Ball Portfolio Holder for Public Health, Leisure and Culture
Councillor Joe Blackham Portfolio Holder for Highways, Street Scene and 

Trading Services
Councillor Rachael Blake Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care
Councillor Nuala Fennelly Portfolio Holder for Children, Young People and 

Schools.
Councillor Chris McGuinness Portfolio Holder for Communities, Voluntary Sector 

and the Environment.
Councillor Bill Mordue Portfolio Holder for Business, Skills and Economic 

Development
Councillor Jane Nightingale Portfolio Holder for Customer and Corporate 

Services.



This page is intentionally left blank



www.doncaster.gov.uk

Report
____________________________________________________________________

                  
To the Chair and Members of the Cabinet

DONCASTER OFFER – CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE ACTIVITIES – CABINET REPORT

Relevant Cabinet Member(s) Wards 
Affected

Key Decision

Cllr Nuala Fennelly 
Children, Young People and Schools

All Yes

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1. The purpose of this report is to outline the new approach taken to refresh the Youth 
Strategy, reflecting the learning from the past four years and setting the direction for 
the next three years. It outlines how children and young people led on the refresh, 
through a newly formed Youth Advisory Board, which will hold officers and the 
partnership to account for its delivery. 

2. The Advisory Board quickly decided that the offer should be for all children and young 
people, not just those within the statutory age range of 13 to 19 years. The Board felt 
there was already lots on offer in Doncaster, and that the work should reflect that. 
This is not about starting again but building on the excellent support and activities 
already in place, therefore, the have renamed it the Doncaster Offer. They were also 
very clear that they did not want the refresh to be a lengthy written strategy, instead 
a set of overarching principles supported by a robust implementation plan and 
more child and young person friendly was of communicating the offer. 

3. To support the principles and to act as the basis for an implementation plan, five 
delivery strands have been created with key objectives.

EXEMPT REPORT

4. There is no exempt information contained in the report.

RECOMMENDATIONS

5. To agree the approach, seven principles and five strands to delivering a sustainable 
Doncaster Offer over the next three years, that is ambitious and is by children and 
young people for children and young people. 

6. To agree the principal of a small amount of seed funding to a middle tier infrastructure 
organisation (Expect Youth), to enable them to fulfil the key functions of community 
capacity building, quality assurance and income generation.

Date: 13th October 2020

Page 1

Agenda Item 6.



2

7. The Children and Schools Directorate Leadership Team and Portfolio Holder to 
receive quarterly updates on progress against agreed milestones.

8. Cabinet to receive an annual report detailing progress.

WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR THE CITIZENS OF DONCASTER?

9. Youth groups that support children and young people have been the part of the fabric 
for many communities, for decades and offer many opportunities and benefits. Over 
the period of austerity, funding for such groups has been reduced, meaning Local 
Authorities have needed to seek new ways in delivering this support. The proposed 
vision and five strand model will do this and provide opportunities and benefits, which 
include.

10.Health and Fitness: Many of the activities involve a good amount of healthy exercise, 
which is particularly important as lockdown has brought a lack of opportunities for 
healthy exercise for some. 

11.Teamwork: Another benefit children and young people can acquire is the ability to 
work in a team. Many activities include team run games and events where older and 
younger children mix, and there is a need for each child or young person to work as 
part of a team. This is an important skill to learn and stands children and young people 
in good stead for future life, whether in education, sport or other situations. A related 
benefit is the responsibility given to children and young people within activities.

12.Specific Skills: The widening of the Offer means that more children and young 
people will be given the opportunity to engage in a range of activities, that includes 
sports, arts and crafts, information technology, and others. These activities will 
provide opportunities for Doncaster children and young people to learn specific skills 
that will equip them for later life.

13.A Sense of Identity: Many children and young people activities are designed to help 
those that struggle to feel part of the wider community, allowing them to make friends 
and become part of social groups. For some of the more vulnerable children and 
young people, these may be the only opportunities they get to develop a sense of 
identity.

POLICY

14.The Education Act 1996 places a legal duty on local authorities to secure “sufficient 
activities” for 13 -19year olds and young people under 25 with special educational 
needs and disabilities. 

15.The UN Policy Brief: the impact of covid-19 on children (2020), suggests that there 
are three main channels through which children are affected by the crisis. Firstly, 
infection with the virus itself, secondly the immediate socio-economic impacts of 
measures to stop transmission of the virus and finally the potential longer-term effects 
of delayed implementation of sustainable development goals. All of this effect’s 
children in multiple ways; falling into poverty, exasperating the learning gaps, risks to 
wellbeing and mental health and risks to child safety, in particular for the most 
vulnerable.

16.Young Minds the leading charity for children’s mental health has completed a second 
survey on investigating the mental health impact of the pandemic, which shows that 

Page 2



3

many children and young people are under increasing pressure and that their mental 
health and wellbeing has been affected. The results of the survey reveal that 8/10 
stated their mental health had been affected, 9/10 felt isolated and 4/10 whilst not 
needing support, felt affected. This really highlights the impact of the pandemic on 
mental health and wellbeing. There are several other studies that mirror these 
findings.  

17.The Mental Health Foundation states that, third sector organisations have a crucial 
role to play in providing support to children and young people post the pandemic. This 
includes, providing positive activities that promote social interaction, physical 
activities and wellbeing. The Foundation is clear that in order to do this, many 
organisations will need to be supported in the short-term. 

18.The national guidance and findings outlined above chime locally. The children and 
families impact assessment, which has been developed via the Children’s Cell and 
is based on a robust methodology identifies mental health and wellbeing, domestic 
violence, poverty, adverse childhood experiences, and impacts on the most 
vulnerable as the key areas of concern. This coupled with an increase in referrals into 
the Front Door means the need for a co-ordinated partnership response.

BACKGROUND

19.A review of youth provision was conducted in 2015, which resulted in a rationalising 
of youth clubs, buildings and provision, leading to the establishment of a middle tier 
organisation, which was Expect Youth, who were commissioned for three-years 
through a core grant. The role of Expect Youth was to deliver the universal arm of 
service delivery, build voluntary community capacity and provide a conduit to attract 
external funding as a strategic partner to develop a sustainable model. Whilst the 
Council retained responsibility for delivering targeted youth work, i.e. for children with 
special educational needs and lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, and questioning 
groups. 

20.This work was supported by the many voluntary, community and faith organisations 
that provide activities for children and young people, and by working together, there 
have been a number of achievements over the past three years. The first being the 
broadening of the universal offer that saw more children and young people accessing 
activities, including the Summer programmes and the recent Doncaster Staycation, 
where over 6,000 took part. These are great examples of organisations working 
together through a co-ordinated approach to provide a wide range of positive 
activities.

21.Other achievements include building community capacity through external funding 
and the embedding of a quality mark for lots of organisations. This is reflected in the 
acknowledgement by the Advisory Board that there is lots on offer in Doncaster and 
provides a greater starting point for the next three years.

22.There has also been some really valuable learning that has directly shaped the 
refresh and is reflected in the approach taken. This includes the need for a forum 
where children and young people are the decision makers and can hold officers to 
account, the need for equity across the borough in terms of the offer, support for 
voluntary, community and faith organisations to survive the pandemic and be able to 
continue the work they provide and the development of a local quality mark that is 
more manageable and achievable for smaller organisations.

Page 3



4

THE APPROACH

23.There was a very clear approach to the refreshing of the Youth strategy in that it 
should be by children and young people for children and young people. As such a 
new Youth Advisory Board was established in July with members from a variety of 
backgrounds that acts as a conduit for wider engagement. This means that children 
and young people are the decision makers and will hold officers and the partnership 
to account.

24.The Advisory Board quickly agreed that the new offer should be for all children and 
young people of Doncaster aged 0-25 years not just for those within the statutory age 
range of 13 to 19 years, which is a really positive ambition. It means that over the 
next three years, more children and young people will be supported, which is 
important considering the impact of the pandemic.

25.Encouragingly the Advisory Board felt there was already lots on offer in Doncaster 
and that this wasn’t about starting again but building on the support and activities 
already in place, therefore they renamed it the Doncaster Offer.

26. Instead of a written strategy, they have proposed seven principles. They want the 
principles to be communicated in a more child and young person friendly way and 
have developed a poster that will be promoted in a number of child and youth settings, 
including educational settings, community venues and on-line. Alongside these, short 
films will be created by children and young people. 

Page 4



5

SEVEN PRINCIPLES - POSTER

Page 5



6

FIVE STRANDS – DELIVERING A SUSTAINABLE MODEL

27.To support the principles and to act as the basis for an implementation plan, five 
delivery strands have been created, with key objectives, these are detailed below.

Key Objective: To refresh
the Youth Strategy for the
Borough, led by Children

& Young People.

Objective 1: Develop a new
Youth Advisory Board by Jul 20
Objective 2: Youth Advisory
Board to develop a set or
principles by Aug 20
Objective 3: Develop a delivery
model by Sept 20
Objective 4: Consult around the
proposed offer with
stakeholders in Oct 20
Objective 5: Agree the
Doncaster Offer by Nov 20
Objective 6: Officers to develop
an implementation plan in Oct
20
Objective 7: Put new
governance arrangements in
place in Oct 20

Key Objective: Effective
use of infrastructure for

delivery

Objective 1: Review of
community buildings & venues
by Oct 20
Objective 2:Work with
corporate services to enable
identified buildings to open in
line with Government
guidelines from Nov 20
Objective 3: Review VCF sector
to map current delivery and
identify where support is
needed by Nov 20
Objective 4: Youth workers to
be assigned through detached
youth work programme where
they are needed from Nov 20

Key Objective: Strategic
partner and champion of

Youth Provision

Objective 1: Support the
development of the Doncaster
Offer by Sept 20
Objective 2: Lead, support and
build capacity across the VCF
sector from Oct 20
Objective 3: Support VCF
organisations to achieve local
quality mark from Oct 20
Objective 4: Generate £1
external funding for every £1 of
Council funding to the Charity
(£150k) from Oct 20
Objective 5: Generate £150k
through fundraising for the
Borough by Sept 23

Key Objective: To build a
self-sustaining Youth

Services model by 2023

Objective 1: Understand the
impact of covid-19 on Youth
organisations & support where
possible by Nov 20
Objective 2: Generate external
funding of £300k by Oct 23
Objective 3: Council
commitment to secure Youth
provision for the next 3 years
until Oct 23
Objective 4: Realise the
ambition of 80p of every £1 of
funding being spent on front-
line delivery – Sept 21

Key Objective: To deliver
Youth Services that are

quality marked.

Objective 1: Develop a local
quality standard linked to child
friendly participation principles
by Oct 20
Objective 2: Identify services to
support to achieve the standard
from Nov 20
Objective 3: Develop and
deliver a responsive training
offer in collaboration with
Expect Youth from Nov 20
Objective 4: Plan a quality
review cycle undertaken by
Young Commissioners by Dec 20

DONCASTER OFFER

28.This strand is around the refresh of the strategy/ offer that will be driven by the new 
Youth Advisory Board. Objectives one to three have been completed and consultation 
with stakeholders will commence after the report has been to Executive Board.

29.The next stages are to develop the implementation plan and put new governance 
arrangements in place. The plan will be developed by a working group(s) that will 
report into the Youth Advisory Board, which will include partners from voluntary, 
community and faith groups, Expect Youth, Family Hubs, Children’s Trust and Health.

30.  The local officer for the children’s commissioner will lead on the overseeing the 
development and delivery of the implementation plan for the partnership, with 
sponsorship by the Assistant Director for Partnerships, Early Intervention and 
Localities. 

31.The key objectives outlined in the five-strand model will be the starting point for the 
implementation plan, and the plan will reach down into more detail. It is expected that 
the plan will be a live document that will change to reflect the areas of focus. Initially 
this will be around mapping out what is in place, and how best to support community 

Page 6



7

groups to continue their excellent work, alongside the development of a local quality 
mark.

INFRASTRUCTURE

32.This is a key element of the model and the principle is to support community venues 
to deliver activities. The starting point is to review what buildings are available and 
what needs to be done to get them ready to re-open to the public. There is no 
proposal to increase the number of venues, rather use what is already there. There 
may be a cost to this that will put funding back into community venues.

33.This will be supported by detached youth work in communities, supplementing what 
is already in place.

34.A key element of this strand is how best to support voluntary, community and faith 
organisations to continue to deliver activities. The starting point will be mapping out 
what is in place, and where (if any) support is needed. Support will be offered via the 
Council’s participation and engagement team, including the Youth workers and 
Expect Youth, and may take the form of supporting bid/ grant applications, training 
and achievement of a local quality mark.

QUALITY ASSURANCE

35.The previous quality assurance mark was the UK Ambition Mark, and whilst this is a 
good quality mark, it took allot of resource to achieve, which made it difficult for 
smaller organisations. Therefore, the intention is to develop a more manageable local 
quality mark.

36.The development of a local quality standard and a rolling training programme to 
support voluntary sector organisations, is a really important strand of the model. The 
local standard will link to the child friendly participation standards and will be far more 
manageable and achievable for organisations. The Council’s Partnership and 
Engagement Team and Expect Youth will support organisations.

37.This will be underpinned by a quality review cycle completed by the Young 
Commissioners.

ROLE OF EXPECT YOUTH

38.There have been many discussions with the Expect Youth Board over the past few 
months on what their role could be in the new model. Pleasingly a consensus has 
been agreed which utilises the expertise and experiences of Expect Youth partners 
and retains the brand. Expect Youth are a key partner and a valuable resource to 
Doncaster and one of the five delivery strands. 

39. It is necessary to provide a small amount of seed funding to Expect Youth to allow 
them to deliver their five key objectives. This will be £50k per year for the next three 
years and will be funded from the mental health trailblazers funding that is held within 
the Council’s earmarked reserves. This reflects the role of the voluntary, community 
and faith organisations in supporting children and young people’s mental health and 
wellbeing.

40.The role for Expect Youth for the next three years is clear, with five key objectives:
I. Support the development of the Doncaster offer.

Page 7



8

II. Lead, support and build capacity across the voluntary, community and faith 
sector, through a mixture of generating external funding to devolve to 
voluntary, community and faith organisations as overseen by the Youth 
Advisory Board and sharing of skills and expertise.

III. Support voluntary, community and faith organisations to achieve the local 
quality standard.

IV. Generate £150k external funding over the next three-years.
V. Generate £150k through fundraising over the next three-years. 

SUSTAINABILITY

41.The aim is to have a sustainable model within three years and the points raised above 
are the enablers to do this, in particular the generation of external funding.

IMPACT ON THE COUNCIL’S KEY OUTCOMES

Outcomes Implications 
Doncaster Working: Our vision is for 
more people to be able to pursue their 
ambitions through work that gives 
them and Doncaster a brighter and 
prosperous future;

 Better access to good fulfilling work
 Doncaster businesses are 

supported to flourish
 Inward Investment

Through the delivery of the 
revised Doncaster Offer, 
children and young people will 
have access to a wealth of 
opportunities and experiences 
that will support their 
aspirations; from programmes 
on essential life skills through 
to opportunities for social 
action and enterprise. 

A key principle of the Offer is 
the provision of suitable 
careers information, advice 
and guidance, as well as 
opportunities to undertake 
national youth work 
programmes including UK 
Youth Awards. 

This will support raising the 
aspirations of children and 
young people of Doncaster, as 
well as support young people 
to gain key skills to take into 
the workplace. 

Doncaster Living: Our vision is for 
Doncaster’s people to live in a 
borough that is vibrant and full of 
opportunity, where people enjoy 
spending time;

 The town centres are the beating 
heart of Doncaster

 More people can live in a good 

The Doncaster Offer will give 
children and young people 
access to a diverse range of 
activities in the area they live 
but also across the borough. 

Through consultation with 
children and young people and 
as demonstrated in the 
accompanying short film, 

Page 8



9

quality, affordable home
 Healthy and Vibrant Communities 

through Physical Activity and Sport
 Everyone takes responsibility for 

keeping Doncaster Clean
 Building on our cultural, artistic and 

sporting heritage

young people feel there is a 
diverse range of activity across 
the borough. The Doncaster 
Offer will build on this to 
ensure equity across the 
Borough. 

A key element of the Offer is 
that all those who are providing 
services for children and young 
do so within the context of the 
Child Friendly Doncaster 
Participation Principles and will 
aspire to be child-led in their 
approach and provision. 

In addition, a key principle of 
the Doncaster Offer states that 
the voluntary, community and 
faith sector will be supported to 
respond to the needs of their 
"youth" community and deliver 
high quality youth provision. 
 

Doncaster Learning: Our vision is for 
learning that prepares all children, 
young people and adults for a life that 
is fulfilling;

 Every child has life-changing 
learning experiences within and 
beyond school

 Many more great teachers work in 
Doncaster Schools that are good or 
better

 Learning in Doncaster prepares 
young people for the world of work 

The Offer will complement the 
outcomes delivered in 
corporate strategies and plans, 
such as the Education and 
Skills Strategy and building on 
the legacy of the Opportunity 
Area. It will do this by, 
supporting the social and 
personal development of 
children and young people, 
building their resilience and 
raising aspirations. 

It will ensure that learning is 
not limited to the classroom but 
through youth activity, social 
action and structured youth 
programmes, including Youth 
Awards 

Page 9



10

Doncaster Caring: Our vision is for a 
borough that cares together for its 
most vulnerable residents;

 Children have the best start in life
 Vulnerable families and individuals 

have support from someone they 
trust

 Older people can live well and 
independently in their own homes

One of the key principles of the 
Doncaster Offer is targeted 
support for those children and 
young people who require it. 
This will be delivered through 
targeted provision in a local 
area or to a particular cohort of 
young people. Or this could be 
in the form of 1:1 support for 
individuals.  This may be 
delivered by internal Council 
services or commissioned; 
dependent on the needs of the 
young people. 

The broadening of the ages to 
0-25 years, will offer more 
opportunities for more children 
and young people.

Connected Council: 
 A modern, efficient and flexible 

workforce
 Modern, accessible customer 

interactions
 Operating within our resources and 

delivering value for money
 A co-ordinated, whole person, 

whole life focus on the needs and 
aspirations of residents

 Building community resilience and 
self-reliance by connecting 
community assets and strengths

 Working with our partners and 
residents to provide effective 
leadership and governance 

Partnership working is central 
to the success of the 
Doncaster Offer, and greater 
focus will be on ensuring there 
is support for the voluntary, 
community and faith youth 
providers, particularly over the 
coming months. 

Therefore, the infrastructure 
strand of the offer is crucial, as 
the workforce is critical to 
delivery, in particular in terms 
of training and development. 

In addition, as this is a child 
and young person led piece of 
work, this approach will 
continue and a cycle of 
consultation has been 
established with children and 
young people, as well as 
providers and voluntary, 
community and faith 
organisations.   

RISKS AND ASSUMPTIONS

42.Risk - Failure to provide statutory functions especially in unprecedented times such 
as the COVID-19 pandemic. Mitigation – The Council owns the Offer and as such 
resets who leads on the statutory functions, this is important and will ensure clear 
accountability with organisations who deliver the offer, being clear on their roles and 

Page 10



11

responsibilities. Previously Expect Youth led on delivering the statutory functions, but 
as they are now widening and based on learning it is felt the Council is best placed 
to do this.

43.Risk - Failure to become self-sustainable over the next three years. Mitigation – 
Through a mixed economy of Council funding, external grant funding (accessed via 
Expect Youth) and fundraising, the model will become sustainable. 

44.Risk - Failure to listen and implement the feedback from the voice of children and 
young people. Mitigation - By establishing the Youth Advisory Board in July 2020, 
we are confident that this will mitigate against this risk. 

45.Risk - Due to the COVID 19 pandemic there is a risk that some of the voluntary sector 
organisations may no longer be able to continue to operate. Mitigation - By mapping 
out, which organisations need support to continue to operate and by working with 
communities to develop new organisations, the aim is to develop sustainable 
community lead organisations that deliver the offer.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS [Officer Initials HMP   Date 26.8.20]

46.Section 507B of the Education Act 1996 requires that every local authority must, so 
far as reasonably practicable, secure for qualifying young persons in the authority’s 
area access to sufficient educational and recreational activities which are for the 
improvement of their well-being, and sufficient facilities for such activities. There is 
statutory guidance dated June 2012 providing further detail of this duty.

47.Under the Act, the Council must consider if it is appropriate for the proposed activities 
to be taken by another person. For Doncaster this was Expect Youth over the past 
three years. The Council must take all reasonable steps to enter into an agreement 
or make arrangements with such a person for that purpose; if it is considered 
expedient. The Council must also consult with such persons as it think appropriate 
as to whether it is expedient for the proposed action to be taken by another person.

48. In exercising their functions to provide activities , the Council  must take steps to 
ascertain the views of qualifying young persons in the  area about:

(i) positive leisure-time activities, and facilities for such activities, in the area;
(II) the need for any additional such activities and facilities; and
(III) access to such activities and facilities.

It must also secure that the views of qualifying young persons in the area are taken 
into account.

49.There is therefore a statutory duty to consult with regard to both using a third party in 
delivering the functions and also in obtaining the views of the young people in the 
area in the activities provided.. The consultation responses must be taken into 
account in finalising the decision. The process must comply with the established 
consultation principles that: consultation should occur when proposals are at a 
formative stage; consultation should give sufficient reasons for any proposal to permit 
intelligent consideration; consultation should allow adequate time for consideration 
and response; and the decision maker must demonstrate that it has considered the 
consultation responses or a summary of them, before taking its decision. 

Page 11



12

50.The decision maker must also comply with the Public Sector Equality duty to consider 
the need to promote equality for persons with “protected characteristics”: age, 
disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, 
sex, sexual orientation and have due regard to:

i)  eliminate discrimination, harassment, and victimisation;
ii)  advance equality of opportunity
iii)  foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 

characteristic and those who do not share it.  

51. In order to do this the decision maker will need to have sufficient information about 
the effects of the proposed changes on the aims of the Equality Duty. The Equalities 
implication section is designed to assist with compliance with this duty and so the 
decision maker must take that into consideration and the public sector equality duty 
before taking the decision.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  [Officer Initials: AB     Date: 27/08/20]

52.There are no specific financial implications arising from the refresh of the Youth 
Strategy and the establishment of a new Youth Advisory Board. As part of the 2020-
21 Council Budget Report approved at Full Council on the 5th March 2020 an 
allocation of £100,000 was agreed to deliver the Youth Strategy, including funding 
targeted youth provision as an ongoing permanent requirement in order to deliver a 
universal youth service.

53.The report also includes a proposal to fund EXPECT Youth £50k per year for the next 
three years to focus on income generation for the strategy because as a Charity 
organisation that provides Doncaster with an avenue to bring new monies into the 
Borough that Local Authorities wouldn’t be able to access.  The £150k in total for the 
three years will be funded from the NHS England Mental Health Trailblazer funding 
that is held within the Council’s earmarked reserves. The funding is regarded as a 
grant under financial procedure rules, and is subject to EXPECT Youth signing a 
grant funding agreement.

HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS [Officer Initials JC Date 27/08/20]

54.There are no direct HR implications based on the content of this report

55. If there are HR implications for the Council arising from specific elements of the 
Strategy, these will be addressed at the appropriate time through the relevant 
governance arrangements.

TECHNOLOGY IMPLICATIONS  [Officer Initials PW…… Date…26/08/20]

56.There are no specific technology implications at this stage.  Where there are 
requirements for new, enhanced or replacement technology to support the delivery 
of the Doncaster Offer over the next three years, a further report outlining the 
requirements would need to be progressed for consideration and prioritisation by the 
Technology Governance Board (TGB).

HEALTH IMPLICATIONS [Officer Initials PW…… Date…26/08/20]

57.Public Health support the development of the ‘Doncaster Offer’. Young people’s 
involvement in positive activities can support better emotional and physical health, 

Page 12



13

improved skills and increased employment, and can provide a means of addressing 
risky behaviour. This model can support the development of an offer that is good 
quality and appealing to young people and provides the opportunity to identify and 
address barriers to participation. This all contributes to young people being supported 
to achieve their full potential.

58.Physical and mental health have been impacted by Covid-19. Youth activities can 
play an important part in helping to tackle some of these challenges. The Doncaster 
quality mark will ensure all activity delivered under the Doncaster Offer is of high 
quality, safe and influenced by the views of children and young people. Consideration 
for evidence-based, health promoting activities can have a further positive benefit. To 
ensure our most disadvantaged young people benefit from the opportunities 
provided, a broad range of children and young people should be represented on the 
Board and in consultation, including those that are seldom heard.

EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

59.There are no significant equality implications associated with this report.  A Due 
Regard Statement is being undertaken to ensure compliancy with the Public Sector 
Equality Duty and that the work detailed in this report considers the needs of all and 
takes into account to equality and diversity of the borough, and that consideration has 
been made to for those citizens with protected characteristics. 

60.A continuous cycle of consultation is planned with children and young people to 
ensure they are involved in the development of the Doncaster Offer and that how this 
is implemented. 

61. In addition, consultation is being undertaken with a wider group of stakeholders, for 
example voluntary, community and faith groups to ensure are their involvement in the 
shaping on the Offer and its delivery. 
This should ensure we are not only compliant in terms of our statutory duties but also 
with regard having a robust and fit for purpose Doncaster Offer for children and young 
people. 

 CONSULTATION

62.There has been lots of work with children and young people to shape, design and 
influence the Doncaster offer, as outlined in the approach section. This captures the 
desire and commitment to truly engage and to provide further tangible evidence that 
will allow Doncaster to say it is truly Child Friendly.

LINKS TO OTHER STRATEGIES

63.Get Moving Doncaster.
 https://getdoncastermoving.org/ 

64.Doncaster Children and Young People Plan. 
https://www.doncaster.gov.uk/services/schools/children-and-young-people-s-plan 

65.Doncaster Growing Together.
https://www.doncaster.gov.uk/services/the-council-democracy/doncaster-growing-
together 

Page 13

https://getdoncastermoving.org/
https://www.doncaster.gov.uk/services/schools/children-and-young-people-s-plan
https://www.doncaster.gov.uk/services/the-council-democracy/doncaster-growing-together
https://www.doncaster.gov.uk/services/the-council-democracy/doncaster-growing-together


14

BACKGROUND PAPERS

66.Due Regard Statement “Youth Strategy” 

REPORT AUTHOR & CONTRIBUTORS

Rebecca Mason, Head of Engagement and Partnerships
Telephone: 01302 737351
Email: rebecca.mason@doncaster.gov.uk

Riana Nelson
Director of Learning opportunities, Skills and Culture (DCS)

Page 14

mailto:rebecca.mason@doncaster.gov.uk


1

EQUALITY, DIVERSITY AND 
INCLUSION 

DONCASTER METROPLITAN 
BOROUGH COUNCIL

Due Regard Statement

How to show due regard to the equality duty in how we develop our work 
and in our decision making.

Page 15



Version 1 September 2013

Due Regard Statement 

A Due Regard Statement (DRS) is the tool for capturing the evidence to 
demonstrate that due regard has been shown when the council plans and delivers its 
functions. A Due Regard Statement must be completed for all programmes, projects 
and changes to service delivery. 

 A DRS should be initiated at the beginning of the programme, project or 
change to inform project planning 

 The DRS runs adjacent to the programme, project or change and is reviewed  
and completed at the relevant points

 Any reports produced needs to reference “Due Regard” in the main body of 
the report and the DRS should be attached as an appendix 

 The DRS cannot be fully completed until the programme, project or change is 
delivered. 

Page 16



Version 1 September 2013

1 Name of the ‘policy’ and 
briefly describe the activity 
being considered including 
aims and expected 
outcomes. This will help to 
determine how relevant the 
‘policy’ is to equality.

The purpose of the Doncaster Children and Young People's Offer report is to outline the approach 
taken to refresh the Youth Strategy. Local Authorities have a statutory duty to provide sufficient 
positive activities for children and young people up to the age of 19 and 25 with SEND. The 
Doncaster Offer details our ambition to deliver beyond these statutory functions, to offer a range of 
opportunities for younger children and those with special educational needs, supporting their social 
and personal development, raising aspiration and building resilience. All of which is set in the context 
of Doncaster’s ambition to be the most child friendly borough in the country. The strategy will now 
cover the 0 to 25 years age range.

2 Service area responsible for 
completing this statement.

Engagement and Partnerships
Learning & Opportunities: Children & Young People

3 Summary of the information 
considered across the 
protected groups.
Service users/residents
Doncaster Workforce

The Doncaster Offer, is a borough wide piece of work which will ensure we have a co-ordinated 
approach to delivering a range of positive activites as well as opporuntinites for social action and 
enterprise for all children and young people aged 0-25. 

A key element is that for those children and young people who need a more targeted or bespoke 
offer this will be available for them. As part of this it will be ensured that those with protected 
charactersics are considered and the offer tailored where appropriate. 

This will be in regard to those accessing the Doncaster Offer as well as the workforce and 
volunteers supporting the delivery of it. 

A mapping exercise of the provision ordinarily available is underway, as part of this we are 
ensuring that the provision avaialabel is inclusive and that any new activity commissioned adhers 
to the Child Friendly Principles one of which sets out the need to be inclusive but also consider the 
individual needs of protected groups. 

4 Summary of the The Doncaster Offer is a young person led piece of work. A Youth Advisory Board was established 
in order to ensure officers and young people were working together to develop the Doncaster 

P
age 17



Version 1 September 2013

consultation/engagement 
activities

Offer, for this the young people led the development, advising Officers. Therefore the principles 
which underpin the Doncaster Offer have been developed by young people. for young people. 

The Youth Advisory Board is made up of a range of representative groups of young people, in 
addition those on the board are also responsible for feeding back and feeding in from a wider 
range of children and young people to ensure we are engaging with a rnage of children and young 
people. 

A cycle of consultation has been developed with children and young people, not just on the 
development of the offer but going forward in terms of how they want the principles to be 
delivered. This will also be replicated across the partnership, with providers such as EXPECT 
Youth but also the wide range of voluntary, community and faith organisations which lead and 
support the delivery of a whole host of “youth” provision. 

In addition, young people and the VCF organisitons, as well as EXPCT Youth will be involved in 
the development of the Quality Assurance Mark/ Assessment to ensure that provider sare 
delivering what children and young people want. Whilst also working with the provdiers to ensure 
that any assessment process is not over bureaucratic and does not over burden, in particular very 
small providers. 

The establishment of Local Youth Forums will also ensure that the Offer is monitored at a local 
level, the views of children and young people are gathered and that the provision can be sourced 
to match needs of the area and/or users. 

5 Real Consideration:

Summary of what the 
evidence shows and how 
has it been used

As detailed above some consultation with youth partners and providers has already been 
undertaken, however over the coming the months this wil be expanded and much more detailed 
consultation will take place. Through the consultation undertaken to date with providers and 
EXPECT Youth there is general consenus that there was a need to have an overarching offer and 
a set of principles which all provdiers could work too. in addition it was clear additional support 
should be provided to voluntary, community and faith organisations, and in the coming months this 
will be more important than ever as services strat to commence delivery. 

As this was a “young person led” piece of work their views had a direct influence on the Doncaster 
Offer. This resulted in a set of 8 principles children and young people wanted to see, this has now 
been made into a poster that can be shared across the borough and used to promote the offer. In 

P
age 18



Version 1 September 2013

addition young people made a video to demonstrate what was available already across Doncaster 
in terms youth provision, again this will be used as a promotional tool for the Doncaster Offer. This 
will be developed further, to ensure we continue to capture the views of children and young people 
but also demonstate how the implementation of the Doncaster Offer is having a positive impact on 
what is available and the lives of our children and families. 

6 Decision Making Due Regard Statement will accompany the agenda item at Cabinet meeting on 13 October 2020.

The cabinet report cabinet report provides greater detail around the consultation process and how 
consideration of protected characteristics / due regard has been an ongoing concern throughout 
the strategy process. Regular updates on due regard and the overall process have been provided 
to the decision maker throughout. 

7 Monitoring and Review New governance arrangements have been established to ensure there is accountability of the 
Doncaster Offer. The Youth Advisory Board will have oversight of the work and each of the work 
strands will have a implementation group that will report to the Youth Advisory Baord. 

In addition, local youth forums will ensure the offer for children and young people is monitored at a 
local level. 

A quarterly report will be provided for the Cabinet Member and the Director of Learning 
Opportunity, Skills and Culture in addition a report will be provided to Executive Board on an 
annual basis. 

8 Sign off and approval for 
publication

Rebecca Mason, Head of Partmerships & Engagement

P
age 19



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6. Doncaster Offer - Children and Young People Activities.
	i cab 131020 - Appendix - Doncaster Offer - Due Regard Statement


